
Licensing Sub-Committee

Date: Thursday, 14th September, 2017
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath

Councillors: Les Kew, Deirdre Horstmann and Caroline Roberts

Chief Executive and other appropriate officers
Press and Public

Sean O'Neill
Democratic Services
Lewis House, Manvers Street, Bath, BA1 1JG 
Telephone: 01225 395090
Web-site - http://www.bathnes.gov.uk 
E-mail: Democratic_Services@bathnes.gov.uk



NOTES:
1. Inspection of Papers: Papers are available for inspection as follows:

Council’s website: https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1

Paper copies are available for inspection at the Public Access points:- Reception: Civic 
Centre - Keynsham, Guildhall - Bath, The Hollies - Midsomer Norton. Bath Central and 
Midsomer Norton public libraries.

2. Details of decisions taken at this meeting can be found in the minutes which will be 
circulated with the agenda for the next meeting. In the meantime, details can be obtained by 
contacting as above. 

3. Recording at Meetings:-

The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now allows filming and recording 
by anyone attending a meeting. This is not within the Council’s control.

Some of our meetings are webcast. At the start of the meeting, the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is to be filmed. If you would prefer not to be filmed for the webcast, please 
make yourself known to the camera operators. 

To comply with the Data Protection Act 1998, we require the consent of parents or guardians 
before filming children or young people. For more information, please speak to the camera 
operator.

The Council will broadcast the images and sound live via the internet 
www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast An archived recording of the proceedings will also be available 
for viewing after the meeting. The Council may also use the images/sound recordings on its 
social media site or share with other organisations, such as broadcasters.

4. Public Speaking at Meetings

The Council has a scheme to encourage the public to make their views known at meetings. 
They may make a statement relevant to what the meeting has power to do. They may also 
present a petition or a deputation on behalf of a group. They may also ask a question to which a 
written answer will be given. Advance notice is required not less than two full working days 
before the meeting. This means that for meetings held on Thursdays notice must be 
received in Democratic Services by 5.00pm the previous Monday. Further details of the 
scheme:

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942

5. Emergency Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building by one of the designated 
exits and proceed to the named assembly point. The designated exits are signposted. 
Arrangements are in place for the safe evacuation of disabled people.

6. Supplementary information for meetings

Additional information and Protocols and procedures relating to meetings

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505

https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1
http://www.bathnes.gov.uk/webcast
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=12942
https://democracy.bathnes.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13505


Licensing Sub-Committee - Thursday, 14th September, 2017

at 10.00 am in the Kaposvar Room - Guildhall, Bath

A G E N D A

1.  EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Chair will draw attention to the emergency evacuation procedure as set out under 
Note 5 on the previous page.

2.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

At this point in the meeting declarations of interest are received from Members in any 
of the agenda items under consideration at the meeting. Members are asked to 
indicate:

(a) The agenda item number in which they have an interest to declare.

(b) The nature of their interest.

(c) Whether their interest is a disclosable pecuniary interest or an other interest,   
(as defined in Part 2, A and B of the Code of Conduct and Rules for Registration of 
Interests)

Any Member who needs to clarify any matters relating to the declaration of interests is 
recommended to seek advice from the Council’s Monitoring Officer or a member of his 
staff before the meeting to expedite dealing with the item during the meeting.

4.  TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

5.  MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 17 AUGUST 2017 (Pages 5 - 18)

6.  TAXI PROPRIETOR'S PROCEDURE (Pages 19 - 22)

The Chair will, if required, explain the procedure.

7.  CONSIDERATION OF VEHICLE SUITABILITY TO BE LICENSED AS A PRIVATE 
HIRE VEHICLE (Pages 23 - 50)

The Committee Administrator for this meeting is Sean O'Neill who can be contacted on 
01225 395090.





BATH AND NORTH EAST SOMERSET COUNCIL

Page 1

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE

Thursday, 17th August, 2017, 10.00 am

Councillors: Les Kew (Chair), Deirdre Horstmann and Caroline Roberts 
Officers in attendance: Carrie-Ann Evans (Deputy Team Leader (Barrister)), John 
Dowding (Senior Public Protection Officer), Ian Nash (Public Protection Officer (Licensing)) 
and Andrew Tapper (Public Protection Officer)

12   EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

The Democratic Services Officer advised the meeting of the procedure.

13   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 

There were none.

14   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.

15   TO ANNOUNCE ANY URGENT BUSINESS AGREED BY THE CHAIR 

There was none.

16   MINUTES OF 6TH JULY 2017 

These were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

17   TAXI PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for agenda items 8 and 9.

18   EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC 

The Committee having been satisfied that the public interest would be better served 
by not disclosing relevant information, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, RESOLVED that the public should be 
excluded from the meeting for the following two items of business and the reporting 
of the meeting be prevented under Section 100A(5A), because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2 and 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act, as amended.   

19   APPLICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE 
- MR D A H 

Mr D A H confirmed that he understood the procedure to be followed for the hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer summarised the report and circulated a DBS 
certificate in respect of Mr D A H, a printout of his DVLA record and a written 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



Page 2 of 14

statement submitted by him. The meeting was adjourned to allow Members time to 
study these documents.

After the meeting was reconvened, Mr D A H made a statement and was questioned 
by Members. He made a closing statement.

Following a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that Mr D A H was 
a fit and proper person to hold a combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence, subject to the satisfactory completion of required tests. Authority was 
delegated to the Public Protection Officer accordingly.

Reasons

Members have had to determine an application for a Combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence. In doing so they took account of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human Rights Act 1998, case law 
and the Council’s Policy.
 
Members had to decide whether or not the applicant was a fit and proper person to 
hold a licence considering all relevant circumstances.
 
Members took account of the applicant’s written statement, oral representations and 
balanced these against the information disclosed by Disclosure and Barring Service 
and DVLA checks.
 
The applicant indicated that his previous caution arose out of situation where he was 
protecting his family. In relation to the speeding convictions these were not obtained 
whilst he was acting as a BANES licensed driver and were unfortunate incidents 
where he was wrong about the speed limits that were in force and had thought he 
was driving within the limits.  He also indicated that he was being put under pressure 
by his former employer to return from jobs quickly.

Members noted that Mr D A H’s caution was from 2011 and was not therefore, 
caught by the policy; he had been caution free for the period anticipated in the 
Policy.  In relation to the speeding convictions, Members noted that the Policy 
expects applicants will not have been convicted of three or more minor motoring 
offences during the previous three years however, Members also noted that they 
may depart from the Policy having had regard to the full facts of the case and having 
taken account of any mitigating or other circumstances put forward by the applicant.
 
In this case Members found that the speeding convictions were not obtained whilst 
Mr D A H was acting as a BANES licensed driver. Whilst Members take a dim view 
of motoring convictions, they were satisfied having heard from Mr D A H that he has 
learnt his lesson and would have to take extra care with his driving given that he has 
a number of DVLA penalty points hanging over him. 

Accordingly, Members found Mr D A H is a fit and proper person to hold a Combined 
Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence.

Authority delegated to the Public Protection Officer to grant the licence subject to 
satisfactory completion of the required tests.

Page 6



Page 3 of 14

20   APPLICATION FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER'S LICENCE 
- MR M A S 

Mr M A S confirmed that he understood the procedure to be followed for the hearing.

The Senior Public Protection Officer pointed out that the title of the report was 
incorrect and should be “Consideration of Conviction obtained”. He summarised the 
report and circulated a printout of Mr M A S’s DVLA record which had been obtained 
that morning. The meeting was adjourned to allow Members time to study this 
document.

After the meeting was reconvened, Mr M A S made a statement and was questioned 
by Members. He made a closing statement.

Following a further adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED that Mr M A S 
continued to be a fit and proper person to hold a Combined Hackney 
Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence, but issued a warning as to his future conduct.

Reasons

Members have had to determine what action, if any, to take against the holder of a 
Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s Licence who it seemed had 
received three speeding convictions within a three year period. In doing so they took 
account of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, Human 
Rights Act 1998, case law and the Council’s Policy.
 
Members had to decide whether or not the licensee was a fit and proper person to 
continue to hold a licence considering all relevant circumstances. 

Members took account of the licensee’s oral representations and balanced these 
against the information disclosed by the DVLA checks. 

The licensee indicated that in relation to the speeding convictions he was only aware 
of having received two and had six DVLA penalty points on his licence. In relation to 
the complaint regarding his conduct he held his hands up for that and apologised for 
his wrongdoing.

Members noted that Mr M A S had received a written warning from BANES in 
February of this year for text messages that he had sent related to a contract he had 
been engaged in. In relation to the speeding convictions, Members found having 
considered an up to date DVLA print and oral representations from the licensee that 
on balance there only seem to be two motoring convictions on his DVLA licence and 
was not therefore, caught by the Policy. Members noted that Mr M A S had complied 
with the conditions of his licence by notifying the Council of a speeding conviction.
 
Accordingly, in all the circumstances Members found Mr M A S is a fit and proper 
person to continue to hold a Combined Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence but warned him to take care with his conduct whilst dealing with customers 
and in relation to speed limits.

21   RETURN TO PUBLIC SESSION 

Page 7



Page 4 of 14

The Sub-Committee returned to public session.

22   LICENCE REVIEW PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for the next item of 
business.

23   APPLICATION FOR REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENSE FOR RISING SUN, 
CHURCH STREET, PENSFORD, BRISTOL BS39 4AQ 

Applicant for Review: Mr Kenneth Jones

Other Parties: Cllr Liz Richardson and Mr Stephen Thier

License Holder: Joanna Drury, accompanied by her husband Mike Radford

The parties confirmed that they had received and understood the procedure to be 
followed for the hearing.

The Public Protection Officer summarised the report. The Sub-Committee noted that 
the grounds for the review were the alleged undermining of the licensing objectives 
of the Prevention of Public Nuisance and the Prevention of Crime and Disorder. Two 
representations in support of the review and 102 representations in support of the 
premises had been received from Other Persons. There had been no 
representations from the Responsible Authorities. The Sub-Committee was invited to 
determine the application.

The Applicant for Review stated his case. He said that he was speaking on behalf of 
his wife and himself. Contrary to remarks made on social media by misinformed 
people, he did not wish the premises to lose its licence and be closed. However, the 
Rising Sun was a source of noise nuisance, which was impacting adversely on his 
wife and himself. People had moved away or had been deterred from purchasing 
property in the vicinity of the premises because of the noise. For three years he had 
requested the license holder and her husband in person and by telephone to close 
windows and doors when noisy events were taking place, or when amplified music 
was played. They had either ignored his requests, or had only closed doors and 
windows for a short period before reverting to the previous practice. New sash 
windows had been installed in about 2014, which had resulted in an increase in 
noise nuisance. The license holder appeared to have no regard or respect for those 
living in nearby properties. The volume of amplified music should be monitored and 
controlled. On one occasion the license holder told residents that the Environmental 
Health Team had advised that they should keep their own doors and windows shut, 
rather than the Rising Sun. This was unacceptable. Not even the application for a 
review had caused any change of behaviour at the Rising Sun; the previous day all 
the windows of the Rising Sun had been open. A wide variety of noise nuisance 
emanated from the premises. Some events, such as quiz nights, were accompanied 
by loud shouting and cheering. Sometimes he and his wife had to wear ear plugs in 
order to be able to sleep. They were also often woken by early-morning deliveries 
and waste collection vehicles, sometimes as early as 5.30am. These vehicles 
sometimes parked immediately outside his property and blocked the road, so that 
other vehicles had to mount the pavement causing damage to his property. On 
occasions customers coming from the pub had used his garden wall and front 

Page 8



Page 5 of 14

window sills as a table for their drinks. Because he had no response to his requests 
to the licence holder, he had had no option but to apply for a review of the licence. 
He did not wish to affect the profitability of the business, but requested that 
conditions be imposed that mitigated the impact of activities at the premises on the 
health and wellbeing of wife and himself and on other residents.

The applicant for review was questioned by members.

Q: What activities had been taking place the previous day when the windows had 
been open?
A: Just ordinary pub activities, which were producing noise. People raising their 
voices. A loud general hum.

Q: You object to that kind of noise?
A: Yes, when it comes right into my front room, because the doors and windows of 
the Rising Sun are open. Activities like quiz nights give rise to noise nuisance.

Q: What kind of damage occurs to your property?
A: It’s not the pub’s fault. It’s the result of the dray vehicle parking in the road. This 
forces other vehicles to mount the pavement right next to our bedroom window. Fire 
tenders have been stuck on the pavement near my property.

Other Persons stated their cases.

Cllr Liz Richardson made a statement on behalf of Cllr Paul May, the Ward 
Councillor for Publow and Whitchurch. Cllr May wished to support the continuance of 
the premises licence. He had received many expressions of support for the premises 
from members of the public. He believed that it is well-run establishment. It is 
recognised as being part of the community it serves. This review application had 
been discussed at the most recent parish council meeting of the 10th July, at which 
both the applicant for review and the licence holder had been present. The Parish 
Council agreed that the pub is now a great asset to the village and support its 
position in the cmmunity. It was suggested that the Parish Council support 
individually as residents of the Parish.

Cllr Richardson then made her own statement. She said that had resided within 
walking distance of the premises for just under six years. At the time she had moved 
in, the premises had been under different ownership and had been a very different 
establishment from what it is now. It had previously been rather grotty, to understate 
the situation. Jo Drury and her husband had really turned it round. It was now a 
thriving local rural business. As can be seen from the representations, it enjoys a 
high level of support from the local community. Many of the representations make 
very positive comments about the licence holders. The business had grown hugely 
under Jo and Mike’s management, which shows the level of support from the 
community. When they took over, Jo worked in the kitchen and Mike served at the 
bar. Now the Rising Sun employs seventeen local people, not all full time. They have 
done this without impacting on the other three pubs in the area. She had never heard 
a bad word about the licence holder. She believed that it is a well-run pub. It is very 
friendly and offers excellent food, which they aim to source sustainably from the local 
area. It is not just a business; Jo and Mike are involved in the wider community. The 
Rising Sun is their family home, the place where they have chosen to live and raise 
their children. Events held at the premises are focussed on families having a nice 

Page 9



Page 6 of 14

time. They hold a monthly supper club, to which people come from far and wide. 
There are two grounds for this review. As for public nuisance, pubs are made or lost 
by their licence holders. When they thrive they attract more customers, when they 
don’t customers drift away and they can ultimately close and change use. This is a 
thriving pub and has many customers, mostly happy people enjoying recreation. 
Surely public nuisance only occurs if noise levels are excessive and there appears to 
be no evidence that that is the case. The pub is no different from others in having 
deliveries and waste collections. Like many other rural pubs it is in the centre of a 
village with cottages all around it. As in many villages there are activities in the pub 
garden. As far as crime and disorder is concerned, the Responsible Authorities have 
made no representations to this application. She concluded by requesting that no 
change be made to the premises licence.

Steve Thier stated his case. He said that he had been a customer of the premises for 
over thirty years. He said he wished to pay tribute to the value and enrichment that 
Jo and Mike had brought to the pub. The previous owner of the Rising Sun had been 
past pension age, and had not been particularly interested in continuing to invest in 
it. The Rising Sun had always been important as a community centre. It was now 
very family friendly, and he and his partner took their children there. He had never 
seen any unreasonable behaviour at the premises, or heard threatening language or 
anything loud or outrageous. He had attended a quiz night about a month ago, at 
which there were a total of about twenty people. It had been run by the local tennis 
club, with all proceeds going to charity, as was the usually the case with quiz nights. 
Several times he had to ask the quiz master, who was sat a few feet away, to repeat 
the question, as he could not hear him. He was unable to understand the assertions 
made about unreasonable disturbance from the premises. There were wide benefits 
to the community from the operation of the premises. Locally-sourced food products 
were used in the kitchen. Local breweries were used to supply beer. Jo and others 
had invested a lot of time in tidying up the footpath by the river to improve access in 
the village. He urged the Sub-Committee not to change the premises licence.

In response to a question from the Chair, Mr Thier said that twenty people was a 
typical attendance at a quiz night.

The Applicant for Review asked about amplified sound at the quiz night. Mr Thier 
said that a small microphone was used. In reply to a further question he said that he 
had never witnessed an event at which the windows and doors had been fully open.

The License Holder stated her case. With the agreement of the applicant for review 
and permission of Members she submitted a petition on behalf of the premises and a 
map of Pensford showing the location of the Rising Sign and of the homes of the 
applicant for review and other residents copies of which are attached as appendices 
to these minutes. She was not permitted to submit a number of photographs in 
evidence. She then read from a prepared statement, which addressed each of the 
points made in the application for review. 

1. Loud Music in Garden and Inside the Premises

We have four types of music. There is background music inside the premises played 
during opening hours, which is kept at a low level. Generally there is no music in the 
garden. Secondly, we have music for one-off social events, such as wedding 
receptions. The first wedding reception was in 2013, when the music finished at 

Page 10



Page 7 of 14

00:30 and at 00:00 for the next two. A neighbour complained about noise from the 
first event, so we agreed to finish earlier in future. No complaints were received 
about the next two wedding receptions. Thirdly, we have music at community events, 
which are free to attend and are generally held on a Bank Holiday weekend. Live 
music was played at this year’s New Year’s Eve event until 01:00, despite which Mr 
Jones informed me at mediation that none of our music events this year had 
disturbed him. Finally, we have a late afternoon music session on the last Sunday of 
each month. This is often acoustic music.  These sessions take place in the pub 
usually between 17:00 till 19:00 and we have not had any complaints about them. It 
is difficult to comment further on the allegations without specific examples. The 
Council advises Applicants for Review to complete and submit a log report, but none 
has been provided.

2. Loud Voices shouting, jeering and swearing

I strongly reject this allegation. I have two young children and we live directly above 
the pub and I would not allow such behaviour. Occasionally customers do shout and 
swear, but either I or my staff address this directly with the customer at the time. We 
give a warning the first time, and if the behaviour continues or recurs, the customer 
is asked to leave the premises. Again no specific examples have been provided by 
the Applicant for Review.

3 Delivery Vehicles arriving as early as 06:30

Delivery vehicles do sometimes arrive early, typically to supply fresh fish and fruit, 
which are delivered 3-4 times a week. We have asked suppliers if they can change 
the delivery time, but they cannot do so, because we are the first drop on their 
routes. We also ask that drops be made to rear of the premises, but this is often 
impossible because of the difficult access. The Post Office/village shop and a café 
are not far from the Applicant for Review’s home, and they also have deliveries 
outside of usual business hours. There is also a main road to the rear of the 
Applicant for Review’s home, which starts to get busy at this time of day.

4. Waste Collection and recycling Vehicles picking up as early as 05:30

When I set up the contract with the waste removal company, I asked them not to 
remove waste before 09:00. I have emails in which I subsequently repeated this 
request. Early morning collections are also sometimes made from the Miners Coffee 
Shop. I was awoken at 06:15 on 14th August 2017 by a waste collection from the 
Coffee Shop.

5. Dray Deliveries can block the Road forcing Vehicles to mount the pavement, 
causing damage to the Applicant for Review’s Property

I have photos showing that vehicles are able to pass the dray delivery without 
mounting the pavement. The road directly outside the Rising Sun is the widest part 
of Church Street. I have accepted Amazon deliveries for the Applicant for Review, 
and the delivery vehicles can park in the same way as the dray deliveries, so I am 
puzzled that he singles out the dray deliveries for comment. I am not aware of 
damage to his property and no evidence has been provided of this. Any decisions to 
drive on pavements are made by the driver of the vehicle.

Page 11



Page 8 of 14

6. We have not responded to requests from the Applicant for Review to close 
windows to contain noise

The Applicant for Review has spoken to my husband and myself on various 
occasions, but it is not true that we have not taken action in response to his 
requests. While he has sometimes been somewhat aggressive, it is important to us 
to try to keep our neighbours as happy as possible. We want to be comfortable in our 
own home, and we want our neighbours to be our customers. I have asked him how 
we could address his complaints, and he has asked us to have our windows and 
doors shut when music is being played. We did this for the next event, and yet he 
still complained about loud music. We kept our windows shut, but he had his open. 
At no time before this review had he or his wife approached us about their suffering 
discomfort on a ‘near daily basis’.

7. The Mediation Meeting

I do not understand how his statement about this is related to any of the licensing 
objectives. I requested my husband to attend this meeting as he is a fellow director 
of the business. Mr Jones said at the meeting that on Christmas Eve he had been 
woken by someone knocking at the door and swearing, and, assuming it was my 
husband, he had called the Police. In fact it was Mr Jones’ son-in-law who had been 
swearing. At the meeting Mr Jones said that at the review he would ask for 
restrictions on delivery and waste collection times, for a noise limiter to be put on for 
all outdoor music events, and for doors and windows to be kept closed when the pub 
is busy. But then Mr Jones explained that it is the “general noise” emitted when the 
pub is busy which is actually the subject of his grievance. We asked when he was 
last disturbed by our outdoor music, and he said this had been August Bank Holiday 
2016. Since then we have four more events, none of which have disturbed him.

8. Applicant for Review said he would draft some conditions to be proposed at the 
Review

I have received no suggested conditions from him. He said he would propose 
conditions that would not have a serious impact on the pub’s profitability. I submit 
that the profitability of the Rising Sun has no relevance to the Review or the licensing 
objectives. Mr Jones told me that he thought that stopping music earlier than 
midnight would not affect trade. I do not agree; we would be uncompetitive if we 
could not hold events at times that other venues do.

In reply to a question from the Applicant for Review the Licence Holder stated that, 
unlike most pubs, the Rising Sun does not have a beer cellar. This was filled in with 
concrete in about 1968. The beer storage area, which generates a lot of heat, is 
directly behind the bar room. The premises are also bordered by a stream, so there 
are no windows at the back of the public area. It gets very warm in the pub, so 
windows have to be opened to keep customers cool. They had examined the 
possibility of air conditioning, but the expense would be huge. It would have to be 
installed at the front of the pub and planning permission for this would be unlikely in 
a Conservation Area. The restored sash windows have been provided for the 
comfort of customers.

Page 12



Page 9 of 14

Members put questions to the License Holder.

Q: What type of background music is played at the premises?
A: Mostly folk and pop.

Q: What kind of music do you have in the garden?
A: For special events we have one or two bands playing pop music, not rock music.  
The bands would be amplified.

Q: What restrictions do you put on wedding events?
A: We have a wedding a week next Saturday. They are an older couple and they 
were happy to book it knowing that the music would finish at 22:00.

Q: How about a young couple?
A: We would stop the music at 00:00 (midnight).

Q: Would that be a disco?
A: The first one we held had a disco. We received complaints and have not had a 
disco since. The two after that were bands, which ceased at 00:00. Bands don’t blare 
it out like a DJ. All music in the garden is provided by folk bands, and might be 
acoustic or amplified.

Q: How often has music been performed till 01:00 as permitted by the licence?
A: Never.

Q: Have you ever been contacted by Environmental Health about noise?
A: We did receive a letter from an Environmental Health Officer about an event 
which went on into the early hours of a Sunday morning, but this did not take place 
at the Rising Sun. We had been mistakenly blamed for a 21st birthday celebration 
taking place in a neighbour’s garden.

Q: When are windows opened and when are they kept closed?
A: July was a lot cooler than May and June. When we had the conciliation meeting, it 
was admitted that no disturbance had been heard in the last couple of weeks. This 
was because it had been cooler and the windows had not been open so much. It can 
get very warm when twenty people are inside the pub. We open the windows a little, 
and the customers open them fully to get comfortable. We open the windows in the 
morning to allow fresh air, and perhaps the noise of the vacuum cleaner can be 
heard from outside. In September and October the windows are not open half so 
much.

The Licence Holder summed up. She submitted that the Applicant for Review had 
failed to supply details about specific examples of disturbance, which made it difficult 
for her to respond. A number of the points he had made could not be linked to the 
licensing objectives. She was not aware that he had made any specific proposals to 
address his concerns. She was extremely grateful for the many expressions of 
support she had received from the community. She drew attention to a 
representation of support from a neighbour with which the Rising Sun shared a party 
wall. She also submitted that the claim by one of the Other Persons that he had left 
the village because of noise from the premises was untrue, as he visited the 
premises daily until his departure. She also drew attention to the representation from 
Mr Gardner, the former licensee of the Rising Sun, which states that no complaints 

Page 13



Page 10 of 14

about disturbance at the premises had been received until the Applicant for Review 
took up residence in the village. She requested the Sub-Committee to note the 
absence of representations from the Responsible Authorities. She said that she took 
her responsibilities as a licence holder very seriously. The Rising Sun was not just a 
livelihood, it was also a home. She requested that her premises licence be left as it 
was.

The Other persons did not wish to sum up their cases.

The Applicant for Review said that the opening of the sash windows at the premises 
was having a serious effect on his wife’s and his own health. Noise was sometimes 
constant from 14:00 until the windows and doors were shut. Sometimes he and his 
wife stayed elsewhere when an event was to be held. He requested that the volume 
of music at the premises be reduced a little and doors and windows kept shut.

Following an adjournment the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to take no action in 
respect of this application.

Reasons

Members have had to determine an application by Mr Kenneth Jones for a review of 
The Rising Sun, Church Street, Pensford’s premises licence. In doing so they took 
account of the Licensing Act 2003, Statutory Guidance, the Council’s Statement of 
Licensing Policy and Human Rights Act 1998. 

Members are aware that the proper approach under Licensing is to be reluctant to 
regulate in the absence of information that the Licensing Objectives raised are being 
undermined. Further, that they must only do what is appropriate and proportionate in 
the promotion of the Objectives. 

The Applicant

Mr Jones applied for the review of the premises licence on the grounds of the 
prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance. Reasons 
cited included, very loud music being played in the gardens and inside the premises 
beyond midnight, loud voices shouting, jeering and swearing emanating from the 
premises on a near daily basis. Delivery vehicles arriving as early at 6.30am and 
waste and recycling collections picking up as early at 5.30am. Dray deliveries 
blocking the road forcing vehicles to mount the pavement to pass which is causing 
damage to his property. 

Mr Jones stated however, that he was not suggesting a revocation of the licence and 
did not wish to affect the profitability of the premises. 

The Other Persons

Councillor Liz Richardson and Mr Thier spoke in support of the premises. Councillor 
Richardson described the premises as very well run and said that the licence holders 
should be applauded. She expressed the view that she could not see how public 
nuisance was made out, and noted that there had been no representations from 
Responsible Authorities in relation to crime and disorder. Mr Thier described how he 
takes his family and children to the pub and what a valued community asset it is. 

Page 14



Page 11 of 14

The Licensee

Ms Drury as Licence Holder responded to each of the 8 points made in Mr Jones’ 
application for the review. She asserted that as Licence Holders they act to promote 
the licensing objectives and do not breach the terms of their licence. She noted that 
Mr Jones does not provide clear evidence of specific examples of how the premises 
are undermining the licensing objectives of prevention of public nuisance and 
prevention of crime and disorder. Ms Drury explained that as premises Licence 
Holders they do all they can to be considerate to their neighbours and have made 
arrangements so as to cause the least disruption possible with deliveries and waste 
collections. Ms Drury asserted that a number of alleged incidents referred to by Mr 
Jones could not be linked to her premises and that there are a number of other 
businesses in close proximity to the pub. Ms Drury did not accept that there was anti-
social behaviour as described by Mr Jones and questioned how she could run a 
successful business if such behaviour was allowed to take place. 

Ms Drury asked Members not to make any changes to their licence. 

Page 15



Page 12 of 14

Members

Members were careful to take into account only relevant representations and to 
disregard irrelevant representations. With the consent of Mr Jones they allowed the 
petition in support of the premises and a location plan to be introduced as additional 
information at the hearing. Mr Jones had sight of the petition in advance of the 
hearing. Ms Drury sought to introduce photographs as additional information 
however Mr Jones did not consent to their introduction and they were not therefore, 
taken into account. 

Members carefully balanced the representations made by the Applicant Mr Jones, 
the representations in support of the review application, the representations of the 
Licence Holder and Other Persons. 

Members noted that there were no representations from Responsible Authorities. 

Members noted that following changes made to the Licensing Act 2003 by 
deregulation legislation, no licence is required for live music and amplified music up 
until 2300 hours, in certain circumstances. 

Members noted that there were 102 written representations from Other Persons in 
support of the premises. Within these representations the landlady and landlord were 
stated to be professional, conscientious and highly regarded. They were noted to be 
intolerant of drunken, loud and abusive behaviour. The premises were described as 
well run; not noisy or troublesome but instead a valued and a vibrant community 
asset. Other Persons stated that any music is concluded at times within the terms of 
the licence and often, well before the time permitted by the licence.
 
Having weighed in the balance the written and oral representations before them 
Members found that the Licensing Objectives of Prevention of Public Nuisance and 
Prevention of Crime and Disorder were not being undermined. Accordingly members 
have decided to take no steps on the review.

24   TABLES AND CHAIRS PROCEDURE 

The Chair drew attention to the procedure to be followed for the next item of 
business.

25   APPLICATION TO PROVIDE FACILITIES ON THE HIGHWAY FOR 
RECREATION/REFRESHMENT AT CAFFE NERO, 11 OLD BOND STREET, 
BATH BA1 1BP 

Neither the applicant nor the objector was present. The objector had indicated that 
he would not be in attendance. Members heard from the Senior Public Protection 
Officer that the applicant had been notified of the hearing and had provided written 
representations in support of the application. Members considered whether or not 
they should proceed in the absence of the applicant and were satisfied that there 
was be no prejudice in doing so, as she was made aware of the hearing and had put 
her case in writing. 

Page 16



Page 13 of 14

The Senior Public Protection Officer summarised the report and provided Members 
with a copy of the written representations from the applicant, which had been copied 
to the objector in advance of the hearing. This is attached as an Appendix.

Following an adjournment, the Sub-Committee RESOLVED to grant the application 
subject to the standard terms and conditions. Authority was delegated to the Public 
Protection Officer accordingly.

Reasons

Members have had to determine an application to place 3 tables along with 
appropriate seating on the highway to the front of the premises at 11 Old Bond 
Street, Bath. In doing so they took account of the Highways Act 1980 and the Human 
Rights Act 1998 and balanced the representations from the objector against the 
application and its background.

In reaching a determination members had to decide whether the application was 
likely to obstruct the free passage of pedestrians, cause a public nuisance in 
highway terms or be a hazard in its real sense.
Members considered whether or not they should proceed in the absence of the 
applicant however, they were satisfied that they had received notice of the hearing, 
following which they had submitted written representations in respect of their 
application. The objector had indicated they would not be in attendance and had 
been sent a copy of the applicant’s written representations. Whilst Members did not 
hear oral representations on behalf of the applicant or objector they took into account 
their written representations.

Members noted that there were no objections to the application from the highways 
authority.

Members noted that the conditions of the permit sought would address the concerns 
raised by the objector and in the event that those were not complied with, section 
115K of the Highways Act 1980 makes provision for enforcing such non-compliance.
 
Members decided to grant the permit as proposed on the basis that they did not find 
that the application was likely to obstruct the free passage of pedestrians, cause a 
public nuisance in highways terms or be a hazard in its real sense.
 
Authority is delegated to the Public Protection Officer to issue the permit subject to 
the standard terms and conditions.

The meeting ended at 1.17 pm

Chair(person)

Date Confirmed and Signed

Page 17



Page 14 of 14

Prepared by Democratic Services

Page 18



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE 
HACKNEY CARRIAGE (TAXI) AND

PRIVATE HIRE PROPRIETORS LICENCE PROCEDURE

S:\DEMOCRATIC SERVICES\WORDDOCS\REGULATORY AND 
CTTEES\LICTAX\PERM\PROCEDURECHARTPROPRIETORS.DOC

Confirm Applicant/Licensee has 
received and understands procedure

Licensing Officer introduces the report

Meeting reconvened and Chair 
announces decision. Reasons given 
and parties advised decision will be 

confirmed in writing.

Committee moves to private session to  
determine matter.

Applicant/Licensee invited to make 
closing statement.

Invite Licensing Officer for comment. 
Officer may also be questioned.

Applicant/Licensee may call witnesses 
who may also be questioned.

Applicant/Licensee asked to present 
case. Questions may be asked by 

Members

Members have the option to go out and 
look at the vehicle.

If Applicant/Licensee not present 
Committee decides whether to proceed 

or defer on notice

Chair introduces Members and Officers 
present 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Sub-Committee
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire

 Proprietors’ Hearing Procedure 

1. The Chair will introduce Members of the Committee, introduce the Officers 
present, explain the procedure to be followed and ensure those present have 
received and understood that procedure.

2. The Licensing Officer will outline the nature of the matter to be considered by 
the Committee.

3. Members inspect the vehicle.

4. The Applicant (or his/her representative) present their case, may call witnesses 
and may be questioned by the Committee and other parties.

5. Interested parties present their case, may call witnesses and may be questioned 
by the Committee and other parties.

6. The Chair will invite the Licensing Officer to comment.  If an Officer makes 
comment they may be questioned.

7. Interested parties will be invited to make a closing statement.

8. The Applicant will be invited to make a closing statement.

9. The Chair will invite the Committee to move into private session to enable the 
Members to deliberate in private.  The Committee will reconvene publicly if 
clarification of evidence is required and/or legal advice is required.  The 
Committee may retire to a private room, or alternatively require vacation of the 
meeting room by all other persons.

10. Whilst in deliberation the Committee will be accompanied by Legal and 
Democratic Services Officers for the purpose of assisting them in drafting their 
reasoning for the decision.

11. The Committee will reconvene the meeting and the Chair will announce the 
Committee’s decision with reasons and advise that the decision will be released 
in writing within the statutory time limits.

Updated November 2013

Page 21



PLEASE NOTE:

 Where the Committee considers it necessary the procedure may be varied.

 In circumstances where a party fails to attend the Committee will consider 
whether to proceed in absence or defer to the next meeting. Should a matter 
be deferred the deferral notice will state that the matter may proceed in a 
party’s absence on the next occasion. In deciding whether to proceed all 
notices, communications and representations will be considered.

 Only in exceptional circumstances will the Committee take account of 
additional late documentary or other information and will be at the discretion of 
the Chair and on notice to all the other parties.  No new representations will be 
allowed at the hearing.

 The Committee will disregard all information or representations considered 
irrelevant.

 The hearing will take the form of a discussion. The Committee will allow 
parties to the proceedings to ask questions. Formal cross examination will be 
discouraged and, should it be necessary, supplementary questions limited to 
clarification purposes.

 Parties will be allowed an equal amount of time to present their cases. Whilst 
time limits are at the discretion of the Chair, in the interests of cost and 
efficiency, presentations will not normally exceed twenty minutes to include 
summarising the case. Time limits will not include the time taken for questions. 

N.B.
1.  Where there is more than one party making relevant representations 

the time allocated will be split between those parties.
2. Where several parties are making the same or similar representations it 

is suggested that one representative is appointed to avoid duplication 
and to make the most efficient use of the allocated time. 

3. Where an objection is made by an association or local residents group, 
a duly authorised person – as notified to the Licensing authority – may 
speak on behalf of that association or local residents group. 

 The Chair may request that any person behaving in a disruptive manner leave 
the hearing and refuse that person to return, or only to return subject to 
conditions.  An excluded person however is entitled to submit the information 
they would have been entitled to present had they not been required to leave.

 Bath & North East Somerset Council is committed to taking decisions in an 
honest, accountable and transparent fashion. On occasion however, it may be 
necessary to exclude members of the press and public on the grounds set out 
in the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12 (a). In those circumstances 
reasons for such decisions will be given.

 If any person has special needs regarding access, hearing or vision, this 
should be brought to the Licensing Authority’s attention prior to the hearing in 
order that reasonable adjustments can be made. 

Page 22



 

 

Bath & North East Somerset Council 
 

MEETING/
DECISION 
MAKER:  

Licensing Sub-Committee 

MEETING 
DATE:  

Thursday 14th September 2017 

EXECUTIVE FORWARD 
PLAN REFERENCE: 

 

  

TITLE: 
CONSIDERATION OF VEHICLE SUITABILITY TO BE LICENSED AS A 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE  –  Mr PB  

WARD: ALL  

OPEN PUBLIC SESSION 

List of attachments to this report: 

Annex A – Application Form. 

Annex B – Standard Private Hire Vehicle Licence Conditions. 

Annex C - Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Standards. 

 
1 THE ISSUE 

1.1   This report invites the Licensing Sub-Committee to consider whether or not a 
vehicle that is over 5 years old is suitable to be licensed as a private hire vehicle.  

1.2 The policy adopted by the Council requires each application be dealt with on its 
own merits and where applications fall outside the general policy they should be 
referred to the Licensing Sub-Committee for determination. 

1.3 The policy adopted by the Council requires that the vehicle shall normally be less 
than 5 years old when first licensed by the Council.  Any vehicle presented for 
licensing which is older than 5 years at the date of the application will be referred 
to the relevant Council Licensing Sub-Committee for determination. 

2 RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the Sub-Committee determine the issue. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



 

 

3 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS (FINANCE, PROPERTY, PEOPLE) 

3.1 There are no resource implications arising from this report.   

4 STATUTORY CONSIDERATIONS AND BASIS FOR PROPOSAL 

4.1 Section 80 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
defines a private hire vehicle as ‘a motor vehicle constructed or adapted to seat 

fewer than nine passengers, other than a hackney carriage or public service 

vehicle or a London cab or tramcar, which is provided for hire with the 
services of a driver for the purpose of carrying passengers. 

4.2 Section 48 (1) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
provides that a district council may on the receipt of an application from the 
proprietor of any vehicle for the grant in respect of such vehicle of a licence to 
use the vehicle as a Private Hire Vehicle, grant in respect thereof a vehicle 
licence: 

Provided that a district council shall not grant such a licence unless they are 
satisfied – 

(a) that the vehicle is- 

(i) suitable in type, size and design for use as a private hire vehicle, 

(ii) not of such design and appearance as to lead any person to believe 
that the vehicle is a hackney carriage, 

(iii) in a suitable mechanical condition, 

(iv) safe, and 

(v) comfortable. 

 

4.3 Section 48 (2) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
provides that a district council may attach to the grant of a licence under this 
section such conditions as they may consider reasonably necessary including, 
without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing provisions of this subsection, 
conditions requiring or prohibiting the display of signs on or from the vehicle to 
which the licence relates. 

4.4 Section 48 (7) of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 
provides that any person aggrieved by the refusal of a district council to grant a 
vehicle licence under this section or by any conditions specified in such a 
licence, may appeal to a magistrates court. 

4.5 In January 2014 the Council’s Licensing Committee adopted the current policy 
on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Standards –Drivers, Vehicles 
and Operators.  (The Policy is produced at Annex D). 

Page 24



 

4.6 In January 2014 the Council’s Licensing Committee adopted a set of standard 
licence conditions applicable to all Private Hire vehicle licenses issued in Bath & 
North East Somerset.  (The conditions are produced at Annex B) 

5 THE REPORT 

5.1 Mr Buckland applied for the grant of a Private Hire vehicle licence on the 16th 
August 2017. (A copy of the application form is produced at Annex A). 

5.2 The application is for a Peugeot Partner which was first registered on the 22nd 
June 2012.  At the time of application the vehicle was 5 years and two months 
old. 

5.3 The current policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Standards – 
Drivers, Vehicles and Operators states “That all vehicles will normally be less 
than five years old when first licensed”.  

5.4 The standard conditions attached to the grant of a Private Hire Vehicle licence 
state “The vehicle shall normally be five years old when first licensed by the 
Council.  Any vehicle presented for licensing which is older than 5 years at the 
date of application will be referred to the relevant Council Licensing Sub-
Committee for determination”. 

5.5 The vehicle is fully compliant in every other respect with the standard Private 
Hire licence conditions and has passed a licensed vehicle mechanical 
compliance check at an authorised garage on the 16th August 2017. 

5.6 Mr Buckland bought the vehicle in good faith.  However he was unaware the five 
year age limit was applicable from the date of first registration of the vehicle with 
the DVLA. 

5.7 Mr Buckland believed that as the vehicle was first registered in 2012 then the 
vehicle would be within the five years old criteria. 

5.8 The vehicle will be available at the meeting should Members require to inspect 
the vehicle themselves. 

6 RATIONALE 

6.1 Each application for a licence will be considered on its own merits and in line 
with the current Policy on Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Standards. This application is for a Private Hire vehicle licence in respect of a 
vehicle which cannot comply with the standard licence conditions attached to the 
grant of a Private Hire vehicle licence in B&NES.  Consequently, this matter is 
referred to the Licensing Sub Committee for consideration. 

7 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

7.1 None 

8 CONSULTATION 

8.1 The Council's Monitoring Officer (Head of Legal and Democratic Services and 
Council Solicitor) and Section 151 Officer (Divisional Director - Finance) and 

Page 25



 

Information Governance Officer have had the opportunity to input to this report 
and have cleared it for publication. 

9 RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.1 A risk assessment related to the issue and recommendations has been 
undertaken, in compliance with the Council's decision making risk management 
guidance. 

 

Contact person  John Dowding  01225 477689 

Background 
papers 

Licensing File 

Please contact the report author if you need to access this report in an 
alternative format 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



ANNEX A 

 

 
 

Page 27



ANNEX A 

 

 

Page 28



ANNEX B 

 

 
 

Page 29



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 30



ANNEX B 

 

 
 

Page 31



ANNEX B 

 

 
 

Page 32



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 33



ANNEX B 

 Page 34



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 35



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 36



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 37



ANNEX B 

 

 

Page 38



ANNEX B 

 Page 39



ANNEX C 

 

 

 
 

Page 40



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 41



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 42



ANNEX C 

 

 
 
 

Page 43



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 44



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 45



ANNEX C 

 

 

Page 46



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 47



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 48



ANNEX C 

 

 
 

Page 49



ANNEX C 

 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF 17 AUGUST 2017
	6 TAXI PROPRIETOR'S PROCEDURE
	HCPHV Proprietors procedure

	7 CONSIDERATION OF VEHICLE SUITABILITY TO BE LICENSED AS A PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLE

